Earth Negotiations Bullet
. A R.er;or.tin.g :Se.rvi.ce. f(;r I.En;/ir.on.m.en.t a.nd. D.ev.elz)p.mén'; I\I.eg.ot.iat.ions

Vol. 4 No. 119  Published by the international Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Wednesday, 2 December 1998

CCD COP-2 HIGHLIGHTS ronmental consequence of the wars in Eastern Europe. ROMANIA

TUESDAY. 1 DECEMBER 1998 said it has ratified the CCD and begun implementing its commit-

: ...__ments, particularly work on its NAP. He noted that soil erosion has
S .DelegatgsTto ﬁCI? Cog)'z. metin P.Ienarydanf? the CommltjceeO%rgome a problem in southern Romania. SYRIA highlighted activ-

clence and 1echnology during morning and afternoon Sesslonges \ngertaken nationally and regionally to combat desertifica-
The Plenary heard reports from convention secretariats, Partlest rﬁd

. o . .- —tion: A NAP has been established, under which there are currently
intergovernmental organizations and considered the accred'tat'ﬁﬁrty-two projects, and he requested financing for their implemen-

of NGOs and IGOs and the election of officers. The Committee &lion. The LEAGUE OF ARAB STATES described the efforts of
Science and Technology completed 'co'nsideration of the roster e Arab Centre for Studies of Arid Zones and Drylands (ACSAD)
eXpertS.’ survey and evqluanon of e.X|st|ng net_W(_)rks, benchmarlig contain the effects of drought and desertification as well as to
gnsd_rlndlcators, and bodies performing work similar to that of therehabilitate desert arid areas. He underscored the need for coopera
' tion and participation of local populations and NGOs in imple-
PLENARY menting the CCD. IGAD (Intergovernmental Authority on

Delmar Blasco, RAMSAR Convention Executive Secretary, Development) described various activities includirtgr alia: a
said many wetlands can be found in the world’s arid zones and feasibility study on the establishment of a subregional facilitation
encouraged coordinating related activities at the national and inféRd to identify financial resources and establish an accessible
national level. He highlighted the Memorandum of Understandifi§ancial reservoir and a study on the involvement of the private
(MOU) that has been prepared for the RAMSAR and CCD Secrgector in the implementation of the CCD. WMO called on the COP
tariats. Noting its Memorandum of Cooperation with the CCD, at0 include in its agenda mechanisms for cooperation between the
CBD representative stressed the importance of cooperation to CCD, CBD and IPCC, and improvement of systematic observation
reduce the burdens and optimize the limited resources of Partie8YStems.
and the Conventions. She noted the interdependence of loss of FAO emphasized the link between the CCD and the promotion
biodiversity, deforestation, soil degradation and desertification. of food security. He said FAO is developing a programme of action
She outlined many of the Conventions’ related issues and activities focuses on: assistance in implementation of NAPs; technical
and said drylands will be examined at CBD COP-5. Hama Arbasupport of networks on desertification; the preparation and dissem-
Diallo, CCD Executive Secretary, also stressed synergyzing  ination of best technical practices; the establishment of an informa-
Conventions at all levels. tion system to assist decision making; and technical support to the

ARGENTINA emphagized the need for a Strong and efﬁcienpOdieS of the CCD. UNESCO said that an MOU between UNESCO
Secretariat with clear functions that are different but coordinate@nd the CCD Secretariat is currently being formulated to provide a
with those of the Global Mechanism (GM) and called for a balarféa@mework agreement for joint activities, in particular those within
in the budget among the regions. ISRAEL informed the confereM¥ESCO’s mandated programme areas on education, science and
about the upgrading of the Blaustein Institute for Desert Resear€Hlture. UNEP highlighted ways it could assist the Parties in
which is geared toward developing countries affected by desertgembating desertification, including: assessment and environ-
cation. He said that support had been secured to establish an infaghtal reporting; the gathering and exchange of scientific and tech-
mation centre producing real-time interpreted satellite images ofical information; facilitating regional cooperation and the
drylands of the Middle East, Asia and Africa. The RUSSIAN  Participation of civil society; assisting in synergyzing Conventions;
FEDERATION, supported by ARMENIA and AZERBAIJAN,  and securing GEF financing.
called for progress on the definition of a fifth annex to the CCD for ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS: Delegates accredited the
the consideration of the central and eastern European States. TigOs and NGOs listed in document ICCD/COP(2)/12.
RUSSIAN FEDERATION said he was prepared to undertake Delegates accepted the nine nominations from the regional and
informal consultations on the issue. ARMENIA noted the link  interest groups to serve as Vice-Presidents of the Bureau: John
between the Rio Conventions and its efforts to implement its oblkshe (Antigua and Barbuda), Maria Julia Alsogaray (Argentina),
gations under each, and with AZERBAIJAN stressed regional agafarov Ogtay (Azerbaijan), Samvel Baloyan (Armenia), Marc
interregional cooperation. AZERBAIJAN said it has ratified the Gedopt (Belgium), Olivier Jalbert (Canada), Abdelmajid Khabour
CCD and begun to elaborate its National Action Programme
(NAP). He said that increased desertification has become an envi-

»

Ny

;-':.!

&

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Changbo Bai <changbo.bai@gte.net>, Angela Churie <churie@I.kth.se>, Tiffan
Prather <tprather@iisd.org> and Lynn Wagner, Ph.D. <lynn@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.orgarsaginigeBditor is Langston James
"Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca). Logistics by Molly Rosenman <mrosenmaa@ifsench language versign
by Mongi Gahoum <Mongi.Gadhoum@enb.intl.tn>.The Sustaining Donors Biitleinare the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of
Canada (through CIDA) and the United States (through USAID). General Support Buligsten during 1998 is provided by the United Kingdom Department|for

International Development (DFID), the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Dewé&lopmeration (BMZ), the
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Swiss Office for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the European Community (2G4Xlistties of Environment ang
Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs arstrivof Environment of Finland, the
Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and theMmsEyvironment in Iceland]
TheBulletincan be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. [ISD can be contactikat kyréer@@isd.ca> and a
161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinions expres&eudtim Kegotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not
necessarily reflect the views of 1ISD and other funders. Excerpts frofstttie Negotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and only with
appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managingdtditoc. \Eesions of thBulletin are sent to
e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite inegnvedove Dakar (¢)1998 The Living
Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on Barth Negotiations Bulletirsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Wednesday, 2 December 1998 .y oo Vol. 4 No. 119 Page 2

(Jordan), Ali Saad Altokhais (Saudi Arabia) and Hatem Ben Salsapport to evaluate implementation. TUNISIA noted the social and

(Tunisia). Marc Gedopt was selected to Chair the COW while economic implications of the methodology for impact indicators

Samvel Baloyan was selected to serve as Rapporteur. and called for financial assistance to countries particularly in his
The AFRICAN GROUP said the Group maintained its inten-region.

tion to be represented by three members and the concessions madehe NETHERLANDS stressed the relevance of indicators in

at this COP do not imply a renunciation of that intention. Brazil relation to NAPs and asked if tad hocpanel considered how to

made an offer to host COP-3 in Recife. use feedback from monitoring. SENEGAL supported testing the
methodological system and said it has reached a stage where it can
COMMITThEE ONbﬁ(:l.ENCE AND LEEHNOLO.GY q q CE) field tests. The Sahara/Sahel Observatory (OSS) stressed that it
CST Chair Jabbari (Iran) opened the Committee and noted fajiiaeq self-evaluations and offered to share the results and

the Plenary adopted the CST agenda (ICCD/COP(2)/CST/1) ONgeqons learned from African countries’ tests of the methodology.

Monday afternoon. Delegates elected Guido Soto (Chile), Sam RKINA EASO said his countr P

. ; ) 3 i y selected nine indicators adapted
Mutiso (Klllanlya) and Linda Brown (UK) as V'C?'Cﬁa'rs' Lmda to national conditions and hopes to produce results by 1999.
Brown will also servhe as Rapporteur. Romania, the remaining Eggly) £ noted that developing benchmarks can be difficult and that
European Party without a COP-2 Bureau seat, may nominate the, collection involves costs. CHINA said the establishment of

fourth Vice-Chair. o benchmarks and indicators is useful in implementation.
ROSTER OF EXPERTS: The Secretariat introduced the UNDP said priority should be on indicators for national and

documentation for the roster of experts (ICCD/COP(2)/11 and ¢, hational, including community, levels and highlighted the need

Addtl)' He noteq that COP-1, in Decision 1.9/COP'13 requestedto address accessibility to core data sets. KENYA called on devel-
Parties to submit names for the roster, paying attention to gend ment partners to mobilize resources to increase capacity to

and discipline balance and considering increasing NGO and IG{, 6|0y indicators. ITALY stressed the importance of an informa-
experts. The roster is available in ICCD/COP(2)/11/Add.1, on tr{f‘on system to check the impacts of strategies. GERMANY

Secretariat's vyeb Sh'.te andin CD ROfl\/Lformat. He %Ot?d tgat supported testing indicators on the national level that are appro-
women comprise thirteen percent of the names submitted. He Ete with little input from external sources. MAURITANIA said

the CST may wish to make 'recommendano.ns regarding the deYﬁ icators are relative and cannot be applied everywhere. The Arab
opment of the roster, including steps to achieve greater balanc

hi d d discipli . €CBnter for the Study of Arid Zones and Drylands said projects
geographic, gender and discipline representation. _ should move from the regional to sub-regional to national level and
NORWAY, the NETHERLANDS and ZIMBABWE said the  jndicators should take into consideration socio-economic impacts

names they submitted do not appear on the roster. The Secretagg} costs. CUBA said indicators must serve a country's needs but
said the roster will have to be maintained on a continual basis agd global to enable assessment.

asked for CST members to highlight errors. He also noted the BODIES PERFORMING WORK SIMILAR TO THE

format for submissions was not always followed, creating delayggr. The Secretariat introduced document ICCD/COP(2)/CST/4,
The FAO asked if it could propose IGO representatives. The Segfgz1, compiles information provided by various institutions and
tariat said that member States supply names. TANZANIA noted gy, e ntions about groups doing work similar to that envisaged for

importance of including e-mail or fax information for experts. the CST. He said additions or corrections could be offered.

SURVEY AND EVALUATION: UNEP reported that it is An NGO representative stressed the importance of the CST to

establishing agreements with o'Fher consortium memberg 0 NGOsin combatting desertification and suggested that it address
conduct the survey and evaluation of existing networks, institu- "local science" rather than "local knowledge.”

tions, agencies and bodies, as requested by COP-1 in Decision 23

COP.1. He also reported that a questionnaire is being preparedldh@dHE CORRIDORS

will be distributed before the end of COP-2, and the final report canDelegates to the CST expressed disappointment that the UNEP-

be expected in July 1999 for review at COP-3. The UK and EGYIEd survey and evaluation of existing networks, institutions, agen-

expressed disappointment that there was no written report and thes and bodies has only just commenced and that a progress repot

delegations therefore could not deal with the issue until COP-3.was not included in their COP-2 documents. Several explained that

The UK noted that the dates of the next COP meeting have not getays in securing funding and commitments from the collabo-

been fixed. rating organizations were among the reasons for the late start. Some
BENCHMARKS AND INDICATORS: The Secretariat intro-expressed pleasure with the speed of work since the funding

duced the report of tred hocpanel on benchmarks and indicator@rrangements were finalized a little over two months ago. They

(ICCD/COP(2)/CSD/3 and Add.1). Over twenty participants intdpoked forward to reviewing the network project proposal that

vened on this issue, which the Chair highlighted to indicate the UNEP distributed informally during the Tuesday afternoon CST

level of interest in it. SPAIN noted the need to evaluate the cost @feeting.

desertification for the benefit of decision-makers. She also stressed

capacity building to implement the methodology for impact indica- THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
tors. FRANCE, supported by MOROCCO, said the methodology COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE: The COW is expected to

should be tested as soon as possible to learn how it works. Therﬁé(et at 9:30 am to begin discussing outstanding items, including

supported by JAPAN, noted the need to harmonize work with th : . : :
. . rules of procedure, review of implementation at the regional
done by other conventions. The Inter-State Committee for Drou&h | and the report of the Global Mechanism.

Control in the Sahel (CILSS) noted the importance of information COMMITTEE ON SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY: The

collection and exchange and capacity building so that affected ) ; - . .
countries can know what information is available and can be us&?T is scheduled t(.) dlsc_:uss traditional knowledge during morning
and afternoon sessions in room B 012.

for implementation.

ARGENTINA noted its experience in implementing impact
indicators and supported moving the process to the second phase.
CUBA expressed the same desire and appealed for financial



